
 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
214 GRAND 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 08, 2022 6:30 PM 

HTTPS://US02WEB.ZOOM.US/J/82532952519 

MEETING ID: 825 3295 2519 

DIAL IN 

17193594580 

 

Roll Call 
Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 
Promotion of Interim Chief Matthew Laiminger to Police Chief Laiminger 

Recognition of Community & Guests 

Consent Agenda 
 

Disbursements 

Staff Reports 
Finance/Treasurer Report 

Police Report 

October Blotter 

Public Works Report 

Water/Wastewater Treatment Report 

Public Hearings/Executive Session 
2023 Proposed Budget 

Unfinished Business 
Revision to Town Attorney Contract 

New Business 
North Fork Valley Creative Coalition - Holiday Art Fair Extended Street Closure 

 

223 Grand Avenue Balcony Encroachment Legal Opinion 

 HYPERLINK  "appISd326cbb49e7c4d6b9374aaa76b7eb4b5"Executive Session- Executive session pursuant 

to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b) for a conference with the Town Attorney for purposes of receiving 

legal advice on specific legal questions pertaining to land use and building approvals and use of 

public right-of-way. 
 

 

Parks Committee Paonia in Motion Master Plan Review 

CIRSA Optional Coverage's 

Contract with Interim Town Administrator 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Committee Reports 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/J/82532952519


 

 HYPERLINK  "appIS3601f372032b46d0a42748dcc76f45b9"Finance: Weber & Smith 

Parks: Knutson & Stelter 

Streets: Valentine & Markle 

Water/Sewer/Trash/AWC: Weber & Markle 

Personnel: Smith & Valentine 

Public Safety: Knutson & Stelter 

Paonia Tree Board: Trustee Valentine 

 

How Did We Do? 
 

Adjournment 
  

2



 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

 

3



 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the event the Board plans to discuss more than 

one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

4



 

November 4, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Mayor Bachran Trustee Knutson Trustee Valentine 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Smith Trustee Markle Trustee Weber 

 

 

 

5



 

November 3, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Promotion of Interim Chief Matthew Laiminger to Police Chief 

Laiminger 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Mayor Bachran Trustee Knutson Trustee Valentine 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Smith Trustee Markle Trustee Weber 

 

 

 

6



DESCRIPTION DATES AMOUNT

CURRENT FSBC OPS BALANCE 175,846.83                

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE  10/22/2022 ‐ 11/04/2022 (73,897.56)                 

LOAN PAYMENT

BOND PAYMENT

NORRIS RETIREMENT PAYMENT 11/25/2022 (1,120.00)                   

CHASE CREDIT CARD 09/24/22 ‐ 10/23/22 (391.93)                       

PHILLIPS 66 09/24/22 ‐ 10/23/22 (1,235.75)                   

TRANSFER TO SUMMIT *

TRANSFER TO PAYROLL 11/4/2022 (32,021.90)                  *

INCLUDES VAC PAY OUTS

PAYROLL TAXES 11/4/2022 (16,456.29)                 

BALANCE AFTER PAYMENT 50,723.40                  

DESCRIPTION DATES AMOUNT

CURRENT FSBC SUMMIT BALANCE 2,396,278.31             

TRANSFER FROM OPS ‐                                *

TRANSFER FROM INT. GRANTS ‐                               

TRANSFER TO OPS

CURRENT FSBC PAYROLL BALANCE 302.05                        

TRANSFER FROM OPS 11/4/2022 32,021.90                   *

PAYROLL (DIRECT DEPOSIT) 11/4/2022 (32,021.90)                  *

BALANCE AFTER PAYMENT 2,396,580.36             

DESCRIPTION DATES AMOUNT

CURRENT INTERNAL GRANT BALANCE SALE OF ASSETS‐AUCTION 40,912.00                  

BALANCE AFTER PAYMENT 40,912.00                  

*Transfer from Operations Account to Payroll Account then disbursed as Direct Deposit

UBB INTERNAL GRANT DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY 

FOR: 11/08/2022

UBB OPS DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY 

UBB SUMMIT/PAYROLL DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY 

7



FSBC COLOTRUST TOTAL DESCRIPTION

11/3/2022

GENERAL 538,048.71         COMBINED FUNDS

SEWER RESTRICTED 536,117.66         PROPERTY SALE‐RESTRICTED

DEBT RESERVE 108,025.63         AMKO BOND REQUIRED RESERVE

BRIDGE RESERVE 594,958.16         BRIDGE RESERVE

CONS.TRUST 10,417.80            RESTRICTED TO PARK USE ONLY

GRANT PASS THRU 25,025.00            PLACE HOLDER‐COMBINED FUNDS

INT GRANT  40,912.00            PLACE HOLDER‐COMBINED FUNDS

OPS 163,609.96         COMBINED FUNDS

PARK CONTRIBUTIONS 12,750.00            SPECIFIC PARK PROJECTS

PAYROLL 302.05                 PLACE HOLDER‐COMBINED FUNDS

SPACE‐TO‐CREATE CLOSED SPACE TO CREATE ONLY

SUMMIT 2,396,278.31      COMBINED FUNDS

WWTP 58,580.05            OLD SEWER REHAB ONLY

CD#2‐402 203,772.64         COMBINED FUNDS‐LOC COLLATERAL

CD#3‐2578 261,115.54         COMBINED FUNDS

3,172,763.35      1,777,150.16      4,949,913.51     

COMBINED  RESTRICTED TOTAL DESCRIPTION

11/3/2022

GENERAL 538,048.71        

SEWER RESTRICTED 536,117.66         RESTRICED TO SEWER CAPITAL PROJECT

DEBT RESERVE 108,025.63         RESTRICTED LOAN REQUIRMENT

BRIDGE RESERVE 594,958.16         RESTRICTED TO BRIDGE REPAIRS 

CONS.TRUST 10,417.80            RESTRICTED TO PARK CAPTIAL PROJECT

GRANT PASS THRU 25,025.00           

INT GRANT  40,912.00            RESTRICED LOAN REQUIREMENT

OPS 163,609.96        

PARK CONTRIBUTIONS 12,750.00            SPECIFIC PARK PROJECTS AS DONATED

PAYROLL 302.05                

SPACE‐TO‐CREATE CLOSED SPACE TO CREATE ONLY

SUMMIT 2,396,278.31     

WWTP 58,580.05            OLD SEWER REHAB ONLY

CD#2‐402 203,772.64        

CD#3‐2578 261,115.54        

3,588,152.21      1,361,761.30      4,949,913.51     

BANK BALANCES

CASH POSITION

CASH POSITION

8



Town of Paonia Cash Requirements Report - Paonia Page:     1
Due date(s): All-All Nov 04, 2022  03:21PM

Check Issue Date: 11/4/2022

Due Vendor Vendor Invoice Invoice Discount Partial Net Due Pay Partial Part Pmt
Date Number Name Number Amount Amount Payments Amount Pmt Amt Disc Amt

11/08/2022 1232 ALL AUTO REPAI 3596 1,576.50 .00 .00 1,576.50 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1245 Archuleta, Benny ARCH11-1-2 1,500.00 .00 .00 1,500.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 987 Black Hills Energy 10-2022 487.92 .00 .00 487.92 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 14 Bolinger & Queen I 114125 67.53 .00 .00 67.53 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1126 Browns Hill Engine 845 1,710.00 .00 .00 1,710.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 21 Caselle, Inc 120695 1,261.00 .00 .00 1,261.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 801 Delta County 102822 5,997.75 .00 .00 5,997.75 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 56 Delta County Land 387367-3891 2,867.50 .00 .00 2,867.50 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 43 Delta Montrose Ele ONLINE-342 5,486.12 .00 .00 5,486.12 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 46 Dependable Lumb 2210-251703 418.58 .00 .00 418.58 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 48 Don's Market 03-1110073 11.99 .00 .00 11.99 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 368 Double J Disposal  51839 84.00 .00 .00 84.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 368 Double J Disposal  51840 220.50 .00 .00 220.50 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 986 Elevate Fiber ONLINE-342 758.19 .00 .00 758.19 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1104 Grand Junction Me 3428-112234 472.00 .00 .00 472.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1124 JDS-Hydro Consul INV-0622-13 1,700.00 .00 .00 1,700.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1277 Kelly PC 10312022 6,837.30 .00 .00 6,837.30 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1251 Laiminger, Matt 10202022 63.90 .00 .00 63.90 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1251 Laiminger, Matt 10262022 41.25 .00 .00 41.25 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 470 Leon, Susan 110122-1130 750.00 .00 .00 750.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1076 Motorola Solutions 8230383756 5,247.27 .00 .00 5,247.27 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 141 North Fork Service  730083-7300 1,856.06 .00 .00 1,856.06 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 122 Paonia Auto Parts 393667-3945 667.31 .00 .00 667.31 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 125 Paonia Farm & Ho 138045-1393 93.44 .00 .00 93.44 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 499 Phonz + 13971 129.95 .00 .00 129.95 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 499 Phonz + 14064 1,868.23 .00 .00 1,868.23 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 213 Pollard Water 0225061 957.52 .00 .00 957.52 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1170 Shums Coda Asso 16161 900.00 .00 .00 900.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1170 Shums Coda Asso 16162 1,260.00 .00 .00 1,260.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 1170 Shums Coda Asso 16163 1,500.00 .00 .00 1,500.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 861 The Paper-Clip LL 2045453-204 714.00 .00 .00 714.00 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 161 UNCC 222101083 28.60 .00 .00 28.60 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 491 Winwater Corp 063335-02 243.93 .00 .00 243.93 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 491 Winwater Corp 066351-02 12,255.71 .00 .00 12,255.71 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 491 Winwater Corp 066351-04 12,261.07 .00 .00 12,261.07 ____ ________ ________
11/08/2022 491 Winwater Corp 066390-01 1,602.44 .00 .00 1,602.44 ____ ________ ________

Grand Totals: 36 73,897.56 .00 .00 73,897.56

Cash Requirements Summary

Date Invoice Amount Discount Amount Partial Payments Net Due Amount Net Cumulative Amount

11/08/2022 73,897.56 .00 .00 73,897.56 73,897.56

Grand Totals:
73,897.56 .00 .00 73,897.56

2014 FORD REPAIR-ALLOCATED

ORC CONTRACT AGREEMENT-605042

UTILITIES - ALLOCATED

METER REPLACEMENT-605022

2022 SCADA LEASE-605031

MONTHLY SOFTWARE FEE - ALLOCATED

AIRPORT RUNWAY-507020

LANDFILL FEES-805242

UTILITIES - ALLOCATED

VARIOUS-ALLOCATED

HALLOWEEN CANDY-104144

1MG PORTA POTTY-605016

PARK PORTA POTTIES-164616

TELEPHONE & INTERNET - ALLOCATED

EMPLOYMENT AD-104130

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE ANALYSIS - 605020

ATTORNEY - ALLOCATED

MILEAGE-144226

MILEAGE-144226

CLEANING CONTRACT-104125

SPILLMAN (PD SOFTWARE)-144233

FUEL-ALLOCATED

VARIOUS-ALLOCATED

VARIOUS-ALLOCATED

SOFTWARE ANNUAL FEE - 104133

MONTHLY IT FEES-ALLOCATED

FLOW TEST-605025

BUILDING INSPECTOR-PLAN REVIEWS-124302

BUILDING INSPECTOR-INSPECTION SERVICES-

BUILDING INSPECTOR-CONSULTING SERVICES

OFFICE SUPPLIES-ALLOCATED

LOCATES-ALLOCATED

NEW TAP INSTALL-605022

METERS-605022

METERS-605022

METER PIT INSTALL-605022

9



Manage your account online at : Mobile:  Download the
Chase Mobile app today® 

ACCOUNT SUMMARY

YOUR ACCOUNT MESSAGES

AUTOPAY IS ON

P.O. BOX 15123
   WILMINGTON, DE 19850-5123

For Undeliverable Mail Only

$

This Statement is a Facsimile - Not an original

Payment Due Date: 11/17/22
New Balance: $391.93
Minimum Payment Due: $40.00

         
0000001 FIS33339 C 1 N Z 23 22/10/23 Page 1 of 2 05686 MA DA 45991 29610000010004599101 

45991 BEX Z 29622 C 

Manage your account online at :  Customer Service: Mobile:  
www.chase.com/cardhelp 1-800-945-2028

Download the
Chase Mobile app today

Late Payment Warning:  

Minimum Payment Warning: 

Account Number:  4246 3152 5990 8901

New Balance $391.93

Past Due Amount $0.00

Balance over the Credit Limit $0.00

Account number: 4246 3152 5990 8901

AUTOPAY IS ON

If we do not receive your minimum payment
by the due date, you may have to pay a late fee, and existing and new
balances may become subject to the Default APR.

 Enroll in Auto-Pay and avoid missing
a payment.  To enroll, go to www.chase.com

Previous Balance $3,244.43

Payment, Credits -$3,244.43

Purchases +$391.93

Cash Advances $0.00

Balance Transfers $0.00

Fees Charged $0.00

Interest Charged $0.00

Opening/Closing Date 09/24/22 - 10/23/22

Credit Limit $45,000

Available Credit $44,608

Cash Access Line $2,250

Available for Cash $2,250

_________________________.____________________________________.___________ Amount Enclosed

SCENARIO-1D

CINDY JONES
TOWN OF PAONIA
PO BOX 460
PAONIA CO 81428-0460

Payment Due Date

New Balance

Minimum Payment Due

November  2022

S M T W T F S

30 31 1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

`

`

CARDMEMBER SERVICE
PO BOX 6294
CAROL STREAM IL 60197-6294

See Your Account
Messages for details.

Your next AutoPay payment for $391.93 will be deducted from your Pay From account and credited on your due date.  
If your due date falls on a Saturday, we'll credit your payment the Friday before.

42463152599089010000400000039193000000003

ACCOUNT SUMMARY

11/17/22

$391.93

$40.00

YOUR ACCOUNT MESSAGES

Late Payment Warning:

Minimum Payment Warning:

Remit Coupon for

A500016028A15952599089015C

® 

10



To contact us regarding your account:

Mail Payments to:
P.O. Box 6294
Carol Stream, IL 60197-6294

Send Inquiries to:
P.O. Box 15298
Wilmington, DE 19850-5298

To manage your account, including card payments, alerts, and change of address, visit 
 or call the customer service number which appears on your

account statement.
www.chase.com/cardhelp

Visit Our Website:

Call Customer Service:

www.chase.com/cardhelp

In U.S. 1-800-945-2028
Spanish 1-888-795-0574
Pay by phone1-800-436-7958
International   1-480-350-7099
We accept operator relay calls

11



Manage your account online at : Mobile:  Download the
Chase Mobile app today® 

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Year-to-date totals do not reflect any fee or interest refunds
you may have received.

INTEREST CHARGES

This Statement is a Facsimile - Not an original
0000001 FIS33339 C 1 N Z 23 22/10/23 Page 2 of 2 05686 MA DA 45991 29610000010004599102 

Manage your account online at :  Customer Service: Mobile:  
www.chase.com/cardhelp 1-800-945-2028

Download the
Chase Mobile app today

2022  Totals Year-to-Date

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) 

Balance Type
Annual

Percentage
Rate (APR)

Balance
Subject To

Interest Rate
Interest
Charges

PURCHASES

CASH ADVANCES

BALANCE TRANSFERS

30 Days in Billing Period

Page 2 of 2 Statement Date: 10/23/22CINDY JONES

Date of
Transaction Merchant  Name or Transaction Description $ Amount

10/17     AUTOMATIC PAYMENT - THANK YOU -3,244.43

10/11     MESA COUNTY HEALTH 866-7566041 CO 40.00

10/20     SPRINT *WIRELESS 800-639-6111 KS 327.93
CINDY JONES
TRANSACTIONS THIS CYCLE (CARD  8901) $2876.50-
INCLUDING PAYMENTS RECEIVED

10/01     WORDCAB.COM WORDCAB.COM NY 24.00
TOWNOF PAONIA
TRANSACTIONS THIS CYCLE (CARD  4100) $24.00

Total fees charged in 2022 $0.00
Total interest charged in 2022 $0.00

Year-to-date totals do not reflect any fee or interest refunds
you may have received.

Your  is the annual interest rate on your account.

Purchases 16.24%(v)(d) - 0 -   - 0 -   

Cash Advances 27.99%(v)(d) - 0 -   - 0 -   

Balance Transfer 16.24%(v)(d) - 0 -   - 0 -   

(v) = Variable Rate
(d) = Daily Balance Method (including new transactions)
(a) = Average Daily Balance Method (including new transactions)
Please see Information About Your Account section for the Calculation of Balance Subject to Interest Rate, Annual Renewal Notice,
How to Avoid Interest on Purchases, and other important information, as applicable.

Your AutoPay amount will be reduced by any payments or merchant credits that post to your account before we 
process your  AutoPay payment.  If the total of these payments and merchant credits is more than your set  AutoPay 
amount, your AutoPay payment for that month will be zero.

YOUR ACCOUNT MESSAGES  (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

INTEREST CHARGES

Table Summary

Table Summary

empty cell empty cell empty cell

empty cell empty cell empty cell

empty cell empty cell empty cell

® 

12



13



��������	
������������������������� �������������� ������  
!��
"���
��������� ������� ���#� �$��� #�%�� &��������# ��$$��$������#� � ��%��� �#���#� � ����� �#��'()'*''*+,-+))*' .'''/'' -' 012*,-*,',, 304*'5*,',, 6,-7/57892: 912;4;2<�8:=1>;?2;03 1@9>A:=�B�8:C;2= ?9<D:32=�B�1>:8;2=

 E�F�������E�GH��I�J�G���J�KL��MMNL��H���MG�
J���G���
"��OPPQ����&����R��� �������#���%��� ����#��S�� ������� ����$$����#� ����%��� ���������� �$� &����T ��������U� � ���� O

�� VW�VWXWW ��L����V� E��Y�%
Z �P��O���� VW�VWXWW FZN��ZG�E�II �XW�O�����VW�VWXWW ��EG��J[ZI����I��E�I��G�
J WPWO���� VW�VWXWW �K��I���J��K����	GI�NI \�OP�

�����������$���� ]V̂��%��� � ]_̂�� ��� %� &��������# ]V̂�������� &��������# ]̀ �̂�a���$������$$���� ������������� ����%��%��&���F�#���$� �T��#������W�����P��O�� �P��O�� �\WXO�� \�OP� �W\�O��V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V�V���������������#��F�������� �� ���F���� ������#� ����O �������������������#� R� ����� ����F��� ������#����$�#����  ������ ����a� &�%������%���  
!��
"���
���X�PXVXXV�W\�PPVX���������� VW\VWXWW���VX�VWXWW�W\�O�������� ����������� �����������������������$$��$������#� ������ �#������� ����$���#��%��� �#���#� �?9<D:32=�>:1:;4:8�9b2:>�2@;=�892:�=cCd:12�20�9�b;3931:�1@9>A:/
?efggfhi�..�cjfklming?/0/�Cop�.-)?omqgnjrs�D:�'(6'(*'.-)1fjrt���dojli2ouj�ov�?nojfn?0�Cop�(.'?nojfns�10�+6(,+*'(.' ��Y��E�Y�M�L�KN��
��a�T����w 
��	
�J�MG
�II��H�JN�LIR�G�����NN�M�L���I��
�x:y�C93z?/0/�C0y�.,)-19>0{�=2>:9D�;{��.'6)5*.,)-|}~|||����~~|�||||||�����������|�

�����#���$������������� �����$�#������  ����� ���a� &���%��� O�����$� �� &��##������&�a����� &�����& ���� ����F� &������  ������ ��O

14



15



��������	
������������������������� ������� ������!������ !
"��
#���
����#�����$%&'������'�'(
"��()���$�����(�$���*��+
	,��(���
&���*�'�$�()��'���'&��$�	�*&�
#��(
'���$�	�$&�*��(�)-'. ����!��/!01��0�0��/ ����!��/!0���!!������!����0������!���0�!� ����!�������0 �����0���! ���!�20�33������!�20�33����!4����05��!���!��!4��������06789� �����	���
��1 �6.66 689 ��:)�0*�	);�1  6.66 689� 1�������(�)- 9�9.���&+�
��* 979.������!�����0��������3� 689� �(�**�:'�����+���8�0�� ��)��) 9��.6�� 8��.7�   ��.��� 8 ��.���&+�
��* 8��.7� 8 ��.��!
��* 9��.�� 8 ��.��

16



17



18



19



 

November 2, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance/Treasurer Report 

Police Report 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Mayor Bachran Trustee Knutson Trustee Valentine 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Smith Trustee Markle Trustee Weber 

 

 

 

20



 
 

Town of Paonia Administrative Staff Report 
 

 
 

October 13, 2022 

 
Finance Director 

 
Upcoming Items 

❖ Budget to Actual for August (Cindy) 

❖ Final Budget (Cindy) 

❖ Year-End Preparation (Cindy) 

❖ Conservation Trust Certification of Eligibility (Cindy) 

 

❖ Beacon integration. (Samira) 

❖ Continue to work with Cory on the Parts inventory processes and Barcodes (Samira)  

❖ Continue to work on the Ordering processes (Samira) 

❖ Continue to work on the Vehicle/Equipment tracking processes (Samira) 

❖ Backflow integration (Samira) 

 

21



Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   10/02/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
05:29:39 SUSPICIOUS

Address
 3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

13:02:09 ANIMAL CONTROL 3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
15:38:16 MISSING PERSON OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
20:12:20 CITIZEN ASSIST GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   10/05/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:57:03 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
15:39:13 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
21:04:36 Elder Abuse

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO          PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   10/06/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:48:02 VIN INSPECTION

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/11/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:25:53 Code Enforce PPD PPD
08:48:49 Code Enforce PPD PPD
08:55:54 Code Enforce PPD PPD
17:23:20 TRESPASS

Address
ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO 
1ST ST, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO  
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   10/13/22

22



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:25:01 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
16:25:26 Information PPD PPD

22:47:39 Parking Problem

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO 

4TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   10/14/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
07:39:47 VIN INSPECTION

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/15/22
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
18:00:38 WELFARE CHECK BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/17/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:49:23 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
10:26:29 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
15:22:12 TRAFFIC

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
PAN AMERICAN, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   10/18/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:12:53 FRAUD PPD PPD
10:55:19 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
11:30:21 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
17:09:33 CIVIL PROBLEM

Address
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO 
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   10/21/22
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
19:19:18 DUI 2ND ST, Paonia, CO  PPD PPD   A
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/23/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
00:46:54 SUSPICIOUS

Address
2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

23



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 10/01/22` and `00:00:01 10/31/22`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/25/22
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:40:23 VIN INSPECTION

Address
 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/28/22
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
10:04:29 Juvenile Prob GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   10/30/22
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
09:23:20 SUICIDE/ATTEMPT OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Total reported: 30

A- 1

A== Arrest

24



 

Paonia Police 
Department 

DEPARTMENT BRIEFING:  SUMMARY OF PROGRESS 11/01/2022 

 

 
Completed Lexipol Initial Department 

Survey. Results are currently being 

reviewed and the implementation process is 

ongoing. 

 
 
An officer attended an informational 

meeting at the Senior Center and 

answered questions from various 

parties. 

 
A combination lock was given to the staff 

at the Paonia PK8. This lock will be placed 

on the access gate to the River Park Trail. 

This lock will be used in conjunction with 

other agency and district locks to permit 

motorized access. 

 

 
 
Attended the West Central Region 

POST training meeting. Received 

training on POST grant 

reimbursement process and voted 

to approve grant reimbursements 

for applying agencies. 

 
Attended the Technical College of the 

Rockies Law Enforcement Academy 

Committee meeting. As an external 

advisory committee member our 

department provides feedback and input on 

current training and academy goals. 

 

 

  

 

 
 
Participated in an Opioid Awareness 

event at North Fork High School. The 

event was put on by the Western 

Colorado Area Health Education 

Center. The Fentanyl documentary 

video “Dead On Arrival” was shown to 

8th through 12th grade students. The 

video is recommended to all 

community members interested in the 

Fentanyl epidemic. 

 
The department is now managing its own 

Facebook page. Shortly after being updated 

the page was used to successfully reunite a 

lost dog with its owner. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
The department is currently responding 

to a Mental Health/ Suicidal call for 

service approximately every other 

week and those calls for service are 

increasing in frequency.  

 

 

 

 

 

25



 

 

 

26



 
 

 12 of the 24 CIRSA recommended fixes in the Survey have been completed. The other 12 are 

just waiting for parts, items or bids to arrive but a plan is in place and the survey has been 

completed, submitted and accepted by Cirsa. 

 Work continues replacing meters with the new radio read meters. 

 Installed and re-plumbed the new 275 gallon tote for the chlorine feed at the 2 million gallon 

plant. So far, it seems to be running more efficiently. 

 Worked on some of the problem road areas on third street. 

 Getting winter equipment ready to go. 

 Winterizing of the parks has been completed 

 Leaf Vacuum began having issues the day we started, operational again on 11-3-2022, will 

continue as weather permits 

 

  

27



Water/Wastewater Report (Short list) 
 
Operators are taking Wastewater certification training with CRWA, this is a free training with a 
veteran class A water/wastewater operator and system designer.  
Operators have been approved by Town for self-paced course worth for Water Certification 
through Waterindigogroup.  
 
PRV 
      Planning to install 3 new PRVs in existing vaults, 2 are new bypasses and 1 is a 
replacement for aged PRV. 
      Vaults are lacking Isolation valves and therefore we need to schedule isolated 
interruptions to water services. 
      Awaiting shipment of final PRVs 
       
 
Water Loss Audit; 
      Conducted a water loss analysis for current year.  Working with Colorado Water Loss 
initiative to validate audit. 
      In Preliminary conversations with American Lead Detection team and strategizing for 
conducting a water loss survey of entire system. 
      Breaking down operating costs of treating 1,000 gals of water to better understand lost 
revenue and expenditure overages due to water leaks. 
       
 
Lamborn; 
      Replacing aging solenoids. 
      Broken Static mixer replaced, can now perform CEBs 
      Creating Replace/Repair list for 5 year budget. 
      Cleaned chemical feed lines. 
      Efficiency  
            Chemical Cost savings at Lamborn 51% and now virtually hands off restocking by 
town staff. 
            by Replacing 55gal drum with 275gal totes and choosing a new vendor who can 
deliver to the plant a higher concentration of 
            sodium hypochlorite (from 10%-12.5%) and at rate 35% cheaper than current 
vendor. 
 
Clock; 
      Replaced heating element. Repaired a Pressure Sustaining Valve and Pressure Reducing 
Valve on Raw Water inlet side of plant. 
      Discovered Black mold in Skid tanks - NOT THE FILTER MEMBRANES - Need to pressure 
wash and disinfect. 
      1 Skid Tank has a crack. Waiting for Plastic welder to do repair inhouse. 

28



      Skid with broken tank can treat water.   2nd skid needs more diagnostics, most likely 
needs a "CIP" performed. 
      Mounted Analyzer. 
      Cleared all PLC errors. 
      Fixed air leaks in pneumatic system. 
      Need to program chemical dosing pump to inject chlorine at a rate that matches Skid(s) 
flow rate. 
      Cleaned Chemical lines. Awaiting chemical dosing line fittings. 
      Can perform "Clean in Place" and start-up procedure once chemical line fittings are 
replaced. 
       
       
Wastewater; 
      Treatment Lagoons continue to perform well since aerators have been back online. 
      Investigating biological applications to remove sludge from lagoons. Town has a future 
budget item of $500k to desludge. 
      Biological applications can reduce sludge by as much as 30% a year, for around 
$5k/year. 
      Will implement cost saving strategies. 
            Larger dosing tanks (like Lamborn), New chemical vendor. 
            Cut on Energy costs by incrementally replacing motors with newer, more 
efficient ones. 
            By more closely monitoring lagoon activity by preforming table-top analyses we 
can cut Aerator motor use  
            by 25-50% in summer months. 
 
Planning; 
      Creating ArcGIS map of consecutive water systems, managing ArcGIS data, and 
improving data collection strategies. 
      Improving existing data to better define an asset's purpose, updating and improving 
records (such as, taking pictures of inside of Vaults) and capturing details like layout, fittings, 
materials, and current state of assets.  
      Creating documents for 8" "West Loop" line replacement, including materials list, parcel 
information & contacts, etc. 
 
Distribution; 
      Exercising and flushing fire hydrants for better water quality and to better understand 
system flows and PSI. 
      This information will help to make better design decisions, such as installing pressure 
reducing valves to minimize 
      chances of water loss due to high pressures. 
 
Collections; 

29



      Inspecting sewer manholes for Infiltration and in-flow that may be caused by potable 
water leaks.  Its been discovered that sewer maps 
created by an engineering firm is inaccurate in several parts of the collection system.  Town 
needs to hold engineers to a higher standard and have a system 
for proofing their work.   The inaccurate data skews our Asset Management Planning and 
Capital improvement Project budgeting. It's nothing we can't overcome and correct. 
 
Asset Management Planning; 
      Implementing better systems to track maintenance activities and record asset fatigue.  
 
Provided by Jeremiah Garcia 11/04/22 
 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



 

November 3, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Lawyer Contract Approval 

Summary:   

 

 

Possible Motion: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Knutson Trustee Markle Trustee Smith 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Valentine Trustee Weber Mayor Bachran (Tie) 

 

 

136



 CONTRACT FOR TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

This Contract between the TOWN OF PAONIA (“Town”) and the law firm of KELLY PC 

(“Attorney”) is as follows: 

 

 WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the Town is in need of a Town Attorney; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attorneys of Kelly PC are duly licensed attorneys in the State of Colorado, 

and Kelly PC is willing and able to serve as Town Attorney; 

 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the parties 

hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Appointment.  The Town hereby appoints the Attorney as Town Attorney for the 

Town of Paonia and Attorney hereby accepts the position of Town Attorney.  It is understood that 

the work of the Town Attorney will be performed by Nicolas Cotton-Baez or others in the firm 

designated by him her, but that Mr. Cotton-Baez shall be principally responsible to the Board of 

Trustees for that work.  

 

2. Term.  The services to be performed by the Attorney began pursuant to that 

engagement letter between the Attorney and the Town dated September 14, 2022, shall continue 

pursuant to the terms of this Contract, shall begin upon appointment to the position of Town 

Attorney and shall terminate on the Attorney’s removal or resignation. 

 

3. Removal or Resignation.  Attorney shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of 

Trustees and may be removed from the position of Town Attorney at any time by affirmative vote 

of a majority of the membership of the Board of Trustees, the removal to take effect upon written 

notice to the Attorney. Attorney expressly waives any rights to a charge in writing or an 

opportunity for a hearing prior to removal. Attorney shall be automatically removed from the 

position upon the appointment by the Board of Trustees of a different Town Attorney.  

 

Attorney may voluntarily resign as Town Attorney by providing at least sixty (60) 

days’ advance written notice to the Board of Trustees, unless a shorter notice period is agreed to 

by the Board of Trustees. 

 

4. Services.  The Attorney shall perform all duties of the Town Attorney for Paonia 

required by Constitution, statute, or ordinance, and shall perform other legal services as requested by 

the Board of Trustees or by such Town officers or employees as designated by the Board of Trustees.   

 

5. Compensation.  The Town agrees to pay the Attorney for all services and expenses 

under this Contract at the rates set from time to time by the Attorney.  Current billing rates are set 

forth in the “Appendix A - Fee Schedule,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference.  Attorney generally evaluates rates on an annual basis, and will provide the Town with 

a minimum of sixty (60) days’ advance notice in writing of any increase.  Attorney agrees not to 

137



2 

 

increase rates to the Town until January 1, 2024 or to increase rates more than once in any calendar 

year during the term of this Contract.  The Attorney agrees to bill the Town monthly, indicating 

the services performed, the time expended thereon, and the dates of service. The Town agrees to 

timely make any billing inquiries to Attorney and to pay all undisputed invoices in full within 

thirty (30) days of receipt.  

 

 6. Outside Legal Counsel.  The Town may employ, at the Town’s expense, outside the 

terms of this Contract, other legal counsel determined to be necessary by the Board of Trustees. 

 

7. Amendment. Any amendment to this Contract shall be in writing and agreed to by 

the parties. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract on the dates 

shown. 

 

KELLY PC TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

 

 

By:_______________________________                 By:________________________________ 

      Kathleen Kelly, President                                            Mary Bachran, Mayor  

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date  

 

ATTEST 

 

 

By:_________________________________ 

     Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Town Clerk 

                                  

 

____________________________________ 

Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

138



3 

 

APPENDIX A – FEE SCHEDULE 

 

General Legal Services: 

 

Attorney time     $213.00 per hour 

 

*Attorney shall not increase hourly rates prior to January 1, 2024. Prior to any increase of hourly 

rates on or after January 1, 2024, Attorney shall provide the Town with sixty (60) days’ written 

notice. 

 

Expenses: 

 

Mileage Current IRS reimbursement rate  

Travel Time     Travel will be billed one-way. 

Commented [NC1]: Moved into Section 5 of the 

Agreement.  

139



 CONTRACT FOR TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

This Contract between the TOWN OF PAONIA (“Town”) and the law firm of KELLY PC 

(“Attorney”) is as follows: 

 

 WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the Town is in need of a Town Attorney; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attorneys of Kelly PC are duly licensed attorneys in the State of Colorado, 

and Kelly PC is willing and able to serve as Town Attorney; 

 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the parties 

hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Appointment.  The Town hereby appoints the Attorney as Town Attorney for the 

Town of Paonia and Attorney hereby accepts the position of Town Attorney.  It is understood that 

the work of the Town Attorney will be performed by Nicolas Cotton-Baez or others in the firm 

designated by her, but that Mr. Cotton-Baez shall be principally responsible to the Board of 

Trustees for that work.  

 

2. Term.  The services to be performed by the Attorney shall begin upon appointment 

to the position of Town Attorney and shall terminate on the Attorney’s removal or resignation. 

 

3. Removal or Resignation.  Attorney shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of 

Trustees and may be removed from the position of Town Attorney at any time by affirmative vote 

of a majority of the membership of the Board of Trustees, the removal to take effect upon written 

notice to the Attorney. Attorney expressly waives any rights to a charge in writing or an 

opportunity for a hearing prior to removal. Attorney shall be automatically removed from the 

position upon the appointment by the Board of Trustees of a different Town Attorney.  

 

Attorney may voluntarily resign as Town Attorney by providing at least sixty (60) 

days’ advance written notice to the Board of Trustees, unless a shorter notice period is agreed to 

by the Board of Trustees. 

 

4. Services.  The Attorney shall perform all duties of the Town Attorney for Paonia 

required by Constitution, statute, or ordinance, and shall perform other legal services as requested by 

the Board of Trustees or by such Town officers or employees as designated by the Board of Trustees.   

 

5. Compensation.  The Town agrees to pay the Attorney for all services and expenses 

under this Contract at the rates set forth in the “Appendix A - Fee Schedule,” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference.  The Attorney agrees to bill the Town monthly, indicating 

the services performed, the time expended thereon, and the dates of service.  

 

 6. Outside Legal Counsel.  The Town may employ, at the Town’s expense, outside the 

terms of this Contract, other legal counsel determined to be necessary by the Board of Trustees. 

140



2 

 

 

7. Amendment. Any amendment to this Contract shall be in writing and agreed to by 

the parties. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract on the dates 

shown. 

 

KELLY PC TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

 

 

By:_______________________________                 By:________________________________ 

      Kathleen Kelly, President                                            Mary Bachran, Mayor  

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date  

 

ATTEST 

 

 

By:_________________________________ 

      Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk 

                                  

 

____________________________________ 

Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

141



3 

 

APPENDIX A – FEE SCHEDULE 

 

General Legal Services: 

 

Attorney time     $213.00 per hour 

 

*Attorney shall not increase hourly rates prior to January 1, 2024. Prior to any increase of hourly 

rates on or after January 1, 2024, Attorney shall provide the Town with sixty (60) days’ written 

notice. 

 

Expenses: 

 

Mileage Current IRS reimbursement rate  

Travel Time     Travel will be billed one-way. 

Commented [NC1]: Mary: We stated 60 days in the 

engagement letter so that the firm may consider 

inflationary fee increases based on the Q3 Consumer 

Price Index. To the extent it might help, since I started at 

the firm in 2017, I’ve never seen fees increase more than 

once in a calendar year. 

142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



From: Erin Rae Hooper <erinraehooper@gmail.com> 

Sent: Monday, November 7, 2022 10:34 AM 

To: Mary B <maryb@townofpaonia.com>; Amy Dowe <amydowe@rmi.net>; Frederick Zimmer 

<frederick@elementaldb.com> 

Subject: 223 Grand ave balcony  

  

Good morning Mary,   

 

We are Amy Dowe and Erin Hooper, owners of 223 Grand Avenue and we are very confused and 

concerned to learn that there is another potential issue regarding the balcony for our building.   

 

 

We began this project two years ago with extensive plans provided, reviewed, revised, and agreed 

upon.  The balcony has been present since the inception of our project.  Our initial agreement was for a 

7 foot deep balcony and believing our plans to be in compliance, in good faith, we continued at great 

expense to engineer, purchase all of the materials necessary, install an entry door which required 

changing the building brickwork, and have a custom hand crafted metal railing started.  The expense of 

the balcony to date is in excess of $18,000.  We have also gone thru extensive scrutiny throughout this 

process of our building’s comprehensive renovation as reflected by the fees paid to the town on our 

building permit.     

 

 

We learned recently that an oversight had been made regarding the parameters of the code related to 

the dimensions of the balcony which was in conflict with our original agreement . To  be in compliance 

with the code, the  planned 7 foot deep balcony would need to be limited to 4 feet in depth.   After 

further consideration, we agreed in written email exchange with Corinne, to reduce the depth of the 

balcony to 48 inches.  We did this with the knowledge and acceptance that some of the materials 

purchased thus far would be in excess and a loss for us financially.  Once again,  we had  the balcony re-

engineered at our expense to be in compliance and have done so, with the written approval of Corinne 

Ferguson.  To quote Mr. Reardon, “ …I do believe that Corinne was acting in good faith and considered 

this to be a slam dunk when reviewing this thru the lens of ‘Existing, Non-Conforming Features’  and 

with Chapter 32 of the IBC”  Corinne additionally offered via email  to waive further fees to be  incurred 

thru Dan Reardon for review and inspection, due to the admitted confusion on the part of the town, 

acknowledging the great additional expense we have incurred in this mishap.   

    

 

150



We were shocked on late Friday afternoon to  learn of this issue and that we would be on the upcoming 

town council agenda; we then went over to the town in person to inquire and found that the town had 

closed early.   We do not understand why we have not been consulted regarding this and included in the 

meeting.   We therefore have no time to explore whether we are in need of legal advice and guidance; 

we sincerely hope that will not be warranted. Upon exploring, we do not see any minutes or video of the 

last meeting and after opening the packet for this upcoming meeting, we see no reference to our project 

therein.  We are very confused, uncomfortable and concerned that the rules keep changing at great 

expense to us and we want to be able to trust that our agreements are honored and reliable and that 

we are treated fairly.  

 

 We ask that you acknowledge that we have already compromised from our original plans for the 7 foot 

deep balcony.  We also ask that you keep the current agreement for the 4 foot deep balcony without 

any further changes or difficulties.  We would like to move ahead trusting that our agreements are safe 

and honored.  We are excited and appreciative to be part of this community and to come to completion 

of the restoration of 223 Grand ave. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Amy Dowe 

Erin Hooper 

Community Collective, LLC 

 

151



 

November 7, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Executive Session- Executive session pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-

402(4)(b) for a conference with the Town Attorney for purposes of 

receiving legal advice on specific legal questions pertaining to land use 

and building approvals and use of public right-of-way. 

 

 

Summary:   

 

Vote: Trustee Knutson Trustee Markle Trustee Smith 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Valentine Trustee Weber Mayor Bachran (Tie) 

 

 

152



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator/Clerk    
 
FROM: Monique Ferguson, Underwriting Administrative Assistant  
 
DATE: October 25, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Town of Paonia 2023 Certificates of Insurance Renewal 
 
 
Attached is a list of all Certificates of Insurance that were issued on your entity’s behalf from 
January 1, 2022 to October 13, 2022. In preparation for the 2023 Certificates of Insurance 
renewal, please review the attached list and indicate any additions, deletions or changes to the 
Certificates. 
 
In order to provide faster delivery time to the Certificate Holder, please review the attached 
spreadsheet for Certificates that have a Default Delivery of Mail or Fax, if possible, please 
provide an email address. 
 
If any certificates reference a specific date in 2022 and you do not indicate the revised date the 
event will take place in 2023, the certificate will not be issued. If you do not indicate any other 
changes, we will issue the remaining Certificates of Insurance as shown for the 2023 renewal 
year. 
 
Please return either a copy of the attached list, with any changes indicated, or the attached letter 
indicating that you have no known changes by Tuesday, November 22, 2022 to: 
 
  Monique Ferguson, Underwriting Administrative Assistant 
  3665 Cherry Creek North Drive 
  Denver, CO 80209 
  Email: Moniquef@cirsa.org 
 
If you have any questions regarding this list or would like an electronic version in Microsoft 
Excel format, contact your underwriting representative at (303) 757-5475 or (800) 228-7136. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

153



 

 

 
CIRSA 

2023 Certificates of Insurance Renewal 
  

Town of Paonia 
 

We have reviewed the attached list of 2022 Certificates of Insurance to be renewed for 2023 and 
we have no known changes. 
 
 
Signature: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Return this form by Tuesday, November 22, 2022. An e-mailed, faxed or mailed copy is 
acceptable.  Please return to:  
 
Monique Ferguson, Underwriting Administrative Assistant 
3665 Cherry Creek North Drive 
Denver, CO 80209 
Fax: (303) 757-8950 or (800) 850-8950 
Email: Moniquef@cirsa.org 
 

154



Member Full Entity Name CNID Certificate Type Certiifcate Holder Name Certificate Holder 
Name 2

Attention Address Line1 Address Line2 City State Zip Fax Email Default 
Delivery

Description

Paonia Town of Paonia 64282880 Liability Add'l Insured & 
Property Loss Payee 
(22/23)

Wagner Rents 3071 Dolores Way Carbondale CO 81623 MAIL Certificate Holder is Additional Insured on Liability Policies 
and Loss Payee on Property if required by contract.
As respects rental of equipment.
Property coverage includes physical damage coverage for 
rented and/or leased equipment.
Coverage is provided on full replacement cost basis.

Paonia Town of Paonia 64286849 Liability Proof and 
Property Proof (22/23)

USDA Rural Development Lori Schroyer 760 Bent Avenue Las Animas CO 81054 Lori.schroyer@co.usda.gov EMAIL As respects for Case #05 015-0709.

Paonia Town of Paonia 64362877 Property only Proof 
(22/23)

Benson Brothers Equipment Pam 21240 Austin Road Austin CO 81410 1-970-835-8567 bensonbrothersequipment@hot
mail.com

EMAIL As respects rental of equipment.

Paonia Town of Paonia 64284301 Liability Add'l Insured 
and Property Proof 
(22/23)

Honnen Equipment Tony Bradshow 2358 I-70 Frontage 
Road

Grand Junction CO 81428 MAIL Certificate Holder is Additional Insured on Liability Policies if 
required by contract.
As respects rental of equipment.

155



 

   

October 25, 2022 
 
Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator/Clerk 
Town of Paonia 
P.O. Box 460 
Paonia, CO 81428 
 
SUBJECT: Excess Crime 2023 Renewal Quote, Acceptance Form and Plan Information 
 
Dear Corinne: 
 
Enclosed is the Excess Crime quotation for 2023. Coverage is placed through a master program 
specially designed and negotiated for CIRSA with AIG. Coverage is provided for Employee 
Dishonesty, Money and Securities, Forgery or Alteration, and Computer Fraud. 
 
Your entity’s quote options are shown on the attached Notice of Acceptance/Rejection of 
Quotation form. AIG has made this quote conditional upon their being no material change in risk 
between the date of this letter and the inception date of the proposed coverage. 
 
The Plan Information provides a general summary of the coverages. All coverages are governed 
by the terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations stated in the applicable coverage documents. 
The enclosed Plan Information summary should not be relied on as a substitute for review 
of those coverage documents. If the enclosed information is not adequate for you to make a 
decision about participating in the coverage for 2023, please do not hesitate to contact your 
underwriting representative. 
 
This quote is for coverage effective January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023.   
 
Please note, the carrier participation guidelines have changed. If you decline or do not 
respond to the 2023 quote on or before Tuesday, November 22, 2022, the due date noted 
below, you will not be able to join this program until the 2024 policy term. 
 

This coverage is optional.  Your entity is not required to purchase this coverage. 
 

For coverage effective January 1, 2023, please return the Notice of Acceptance/Rejection of 
Quotation form no later than Tuesday, November 22, 2022.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jessica M. Cowlishaw, CIC 
Senior Underwriting Representative 
 
Enclosures 

156



 

   

 

2023 EXCESS CRIME COVERAGE 
NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION OF QUOTATION 

 
 

The Town of Paonia 
 
 

 does wish to purchase a limit of $500,000 in Excess Crime coverage for the annual 
premium of $ 400. 

 
 

 does wish to purchase a limit of $2,000,000 in Excess Crime coverage for the annual 
premium of $ 825. 

 
 

 does wish to purchase a limit of $5,000,000 in Excess Crime coverage for the annual 
premium of $1,700.   

 
 

 does not wish to purchase Excess Crime coverage at this time. We understand this 
declination means that we will not be eligible to join this program again until 2024. 

 
 
 
Signature: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Signature must be that of the Mayor, Manager, Clerk, or equivalent 
(such as President of a Special District). 

 
 
 

This is NOT a bill.  An invoice will be sent January 1, 2023. 
 

 

157



 

   

CIRSA Plan Information 
 
 

2023 EXCESS CRIME COVERAGE PLAN (Optional) 
 
 

Coverage: Employee Dishonesty including Faithful Performance of Duties Coverage, Money and 
Securities (Loss Inside/Outside the Premises) Coverage, Forgery or Alteration Coverage, 
Computer Fraud Coverage, Funds Transfer Fraud Coverage, Impersonation Fraud 
Coverage and Money Orders and Counterfeit Paper Currency Coverage. 

 
Limits: Members have the option of selecting limits of $500,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 per 

occurrence, or $5,000,000 per occurrence.* 
 
 * For members who have experienced claims that have been reported to AIG in the past 

few years, AIG may elect not to quote higher limit policies at their discretion. 
 
Sublimits $500,000 Policy $2,000,000 Policy $5,000,000 Policy 

Impersonation Fraud $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 
Credit, Debit or Charge Card Forgery $500,000 $1,000,000 $2,500,000 
Prior Theft or Dishonesty $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 

 
Employee Dishonesty Loss or damage to money, securities, and property other than money and 
including Faithful securities resulting directly from a dishonest act committed by an employee or 
Performance of Duties: from the failure of an employee to perform duties faithfully or account for 

monies and property received. 
 
Loss Inside Premises: Loss of money or securities or property other than money or securities from 

theft, disappearance, robbery or destruction within the entity’s premises or 
banking premises. 

 
 Loss of, and loss from damage to, a locked safe, vault, cash register, cash box, 

or cash drawer located in the premises resulting directly from an actual or 
attempted theft of or unlawful entry into those containers. 

 
 Loss from damage to any of the premises or its exterior resulting directly from 

an actual or attempted theft of money or securities. 
 
Loss Outside Premises: Loss of money and securities of the entity from theft, disappearance, robbery or 

destruction outside the premises in the care and custody of a messenger, 
custodian, or any armored vehicle company. 

 
Forgery or Alteration: Loss resulting from forgery or alteration of any checks, drafts, promissory 

notes, or similar written promises, orders or directions to pay a certain sum in 
money. 

 

158



 

 

CIRSA Plan Information 
 page 2 
 
Computer Fraud: The theft of money and securities following and directly related to the use of 

any computer to fraudulently cause a transfer of that property from inside the 
entity’s premises to a person or place outside the premises. 

 
Funds Transfer Fraud/ Loss resulting from loss of “funds” resulting directly from a fraudulent 
Impersonation Fraud: instruction to transfer, pay or deliver funds from your transfer account. Loss 

resulting from loss of “funds” resulting directly from a “fraudulent instruction” 
or receipt of a “fraudulent instruction” from a purported vendor, which advises 
you that the vendor’s bank account information has been changed and you 
suffer a loss of “funds”. Please note sublimit for Impersonation Fraud on the 
first page of this document. 

 
Money Orders/ Loss due to nonpayment upon presentation of any money order issued by any 
Counterfeit post office or express company which the entity accepted in good faith in 
Paper Currency: exchange for merchandise, money or services. 
 
 Loss due to the entity’s good faith acceptance of counterfeit United States 

currency, during the regular course of business. 
 
Claims: AIG is handling the processing of claims. Claims should be reported in one of the following 

manners: 
 
 Send Notification of Loss in a formal letter indicating the Who, What, When and Where of the 

claim to the following.  Be sure to include the policy number in your correspondence. 
 
 Mail: AIG, Financial Lines Claims 
   P.O. Box 25947 
   Shawnee Mission, KS 66225 
  
 Fax: (866) 227-1750 
 Email: c-claim@AIG.com 
 
 

This information is provided only as a general summary of the coverages that apply or are 
available to CIRSA members. All coverages are governed by the terms, conditions, 

exclusions, and limits stated in the applicable coverage documents. This summary should 
not be relied on as a substitute for review of those documents. 

159



 

  

October 25, 2022 
 
Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator/Clerk 
Town of Paonia  
P.O. Box 460  
Paonia, CO 81428 
 
SUBJECT: No-Fault Water Line Rupture and/or Sewer Back-up Coverage 2023 Quote, Plan 

Information and Acceptance/Rejection Form 
 
Dear Corinne, 
 
Enclosed is the No-Fault Water Line Rupture and/or Sewer Back-up quotation for 2023. This coverage is 
being self-funded by CIRSA.     
 
Your entity’s quote options are shown on the attached Notice of Acceptance/Rejection of Quotation form.   
 
The Plan Information provides a general summary of the coverages. All coverages are governed by the 
terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations stated in the applicable coverage documents. The enclosed 
Plan Information summary should not be relied on as a substitute for review of those documents. If 
the enclosed information is not adequate for you to make a decision about participating in the coverage 
for 2023, please do not hesitate to contact your underwriting representative. 
 
This quote is for coverage effective January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023. You may purchase this 
coverage at any time during the year and the contribution will be pro-rated based on the actual effective 
date chosen. However, CIRSA must receive your acceptance letter at least five (5) working days 
prior to the effective date of coverage. 
 

This coverage is optional.  Your entity is not required to purchase this coverage. 
 
For coverage effective January 1, 2023, please return the Notice of Acceptance/Rejection of 
Quotation form no later than Tuesday, November 22, 2022. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Deanna Erickson 
Underwriting Representative 
 
Enclosures 

160



 
 

 

2023 NO FAULT WATER LINE RUPTURE AND/OR SEWER BACK-UP COVERAGE 
NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION OF QUOTATION 

 
 
 

Town of Paonia 
 

  does wish to purchase No Fault Water Line Rupture and/or Sewer Back-up Coverage 
effective January 1, 2023.  Please choose an option below: 

 
  Option I for an annual premium of $1,213. 

$ 2,500 Any one residential premises 
$ 2,500 Any one commercial occupancy 
$ 10,000 Annual Member Aggregate 

 
  Option II for an annual premium of $1,821. 

$ 5,000 Any one residential premises 
$ 5,000 Any one commercial occupancy 
$ 20,000 Annual Member Aggregate 

 
  Option III for an annual premium of $3,034. 

$ 10,000 Any one residential premises 
$ 10,000 Any one commercial occupancy 
$ 40,000 Annual Member Aggregate 

 
  does NOT wish to purchase No Fault Water Line Rupture and/or Sewer Back-up Coverage 

at this time. 
 
 
Signature:             
 
Title:              
 
Date:              
 
 

Signature must be that of the Mayor, Manager, Clerk, or equivalent 
(such as President of a Special District). 

 
This is NOT a bill.  An invoice will be sent upon acceptance. 

 

161



 
 

 

CIRSA Plan Information 
 

2023 NO-FAULT WATER LINE RUPTURE AND/OR SEWER BACK-UP  
COVERAGE PLAN (Optional) 

 
Coverage: Under liability lines coverage, an indemnity payment to a claimant is made only if 

an incident falls within a waiver provision in the Governmental Immunity Act and 
the member is at fault for the damage, such as a dangerous physical condition of 
the public water or sanitation system arising from the member’s faulty 
construction, operation, or maintenance. This optional coverage will pay a limited 
amount for damage, including cleanup costs to property of others, when the 
member has immunity or is otherwise not at fault for the damage.   

 
This coverage is excess of any other valid collectible insurance available to the 
owners of the affected property. This coverage has been designed to help pay a 
claimant’s deductibles, up to the chosen sublimit per any one premises or 
commercial occupancy, listed below or to assist those without insurance with 
some of the damage costs or clean up expenses.   

  
Limits: Members have the option of selecting the following limits of coverage: 
 

 Option I $ 2,500 Any one residential premises 
   $ 2,500 Any one commercial occupancy 
   $ 10,000 Annual Member Aggregate 
 
 Option II $ 5,000 Any one residential premises 
   $ 5,000 Any one commercial occupancy 
   $ 20,000 Annual Member Aggregate 
 
 Option III $ 10,000 Any one residential premises 
   $ 10,000 Any one commercial occupancy 
   $ 40,000 Annual Member Aggregate 

  
Deductibles: $0 

    
Claims: Claims will be handled by the CIRSA Claims Department. Please report claims 

using the CIRSA on-line claims system or contact your assigned CIRSA Claims 
Representative.    

 
This information is provided only as a general summary of the coverages that apply or 
are available to CIRSA members. All coverages are governed by the terms, conditions, 

exclusions, and limits stated in the applicable coverage documents. This summary 
should not be relied on as a substitute for review of those documents. 

162



 

  

October 25, 2022 

 

Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator/Clerk 

Town of Paonia 

P.O. Box 460 

Paonia, CO 81428 

 

SUBJECT: Volunteer Accident Medical Plan 2023  

Program Plan Information and Data Collection Form 

 

Dear Corinne: 

 

Enclosed are the plan information and data collection form documents pertaining to the 2023 Volunteer 

Accident Medical Plan (VAMP). Coverage is placed through a master program specially designed and 

negotiated for CIRSA with Wellfleet Insurance Company.  

 

The 2023 VAMP rates are $2.48 per volunteer (including uncompensated elected/appointed officials, 

when not covered by workers’ compensation) and $6.39 per volunteer unsworn rangers and/or patrol (i.e. 

Colorado Mounted Rangers). Your final 2023 premium is subject to audit. The rates are effective from 

January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. 

 

The Plan Information provides a general summary of the coverages. All coverages are governed by the 

terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations stated in the applicable coverage documents. The enclosed 

Plan Information summary should not be relied on as a substitute for review of those documents. If 

the enclosed information is not adequate for you to make a decision about participating in the coverage 

for 2023, please do not hesitate to contact your underwriting representative. 

 

YOUR RECORD KEEPING OBLIGATIONS: 

 

Your entity must keep a record of the individuals to be covered by the VAMP policy. VAMP coverage 

will apply only to those individuals for whom the records are kept and only for the location, tasks 

or duties as described in those records. 

 

Your entity is required to keep records showing the individual’s name, their position or activity, 

approximate number of hours worked, dates of service, description of duties and their volunteer statue 

(i.e. volunteer or volunteer unsworn rangers and/or patrol). We cannot guarantee coverage if this 

information is not maintained. 

 

Upon your acceptance of this coverage for 2023, we will forward a packet with a sample registration and 

roster form, with instructions, to you. The forms will be needed when completing the 2023 audit in 

January, 2024. 

 

THE AGREEMENT: 

 

Attached is an Data Collection Form for your entity’s participation in the 2023 VAMP Program. You may 

purchase this coverage at any time during the year. However, CIRSA must receive your acceptance 

letter at least two (2) working days prior to the effective date of coverage. Your 2023 invoice will be 

based on the deposit information you provide. 

 

  

163



Town of Paonia 

Volunteer Accident Medical Plan 2023  

Program Plan Information and Data Collection Form 

October 25, 2022 

Page 2 

 

 

 

This coverage is optional. Your entity is not required to purchase this coverage. 

 

 

For coverage effective January 1, 2023, please return the Data Collection Form no later than 

Tuesday, November 22, 2022. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Catherine A. Wegman 

Underwriting Representative 

 

Enclosures

164



 

 

BLANKET ACCIDENT INSURANCE DATA COLLECTION 

VAMP POLICY NO. SPR0-50571-609 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 1/1/2023 
 

Entity:  Town of Paonia Department/Program Name:    
 
              

Completed by/Title:    Phone Number:              Effective Date of Coverage: 

 

Accident Medical Expense PRIMARY:   Accidental Death Benefit:     $10,000  

 Maximum Benefit Amount (per Injury):   $50,000  Accidental Dismemberment Benefit 

 Deductible Amount (per Injury):          $          0  Principal Sum:       $10,000  

 Benefit Period:               52 Weeks  Aggregate Limit:      $250,000  

        Catastrophic Cash Benefit:  $25,000  

 
 

Name of position or 

activity 

Approximate number 

of hours per day or 

week per volunteer 

Description of task or duties 

performed or assigned 

Approximate 

number of 

volunteers per year 

    

    

    

    
 

Deposit Premium Computations: 
 

 

*Total number of volunteers:   

 

Rate:  $2.48 

 

Total:  $ 
 

*Total number of uncompensated elected appointed officials: 
 

Rate:  $2.48 

 

Total:  $ 

 

*Total number of volunteer unsworn rangers and/or patrol: 

 

Rate:  $6.39 

 

Total:  $ 
 

**PLEASE SEE ENCLOSED PLAN INFORMATION FOR ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

                                                                                                                Total Premium: $      
 

Deposit Premiums will be adjusted by year-end audit based on actual usage of the program. 

 

____ By submission of this application to CIRSA, the entity listed above hereby acknowledges and accepts the 

deposit premium and hereby requests the bindery of this coverage with Wellfleet Insurance Company. 

 

____ The entity above rejects binding of this coverage for 2023. 

 

 

Signature:           Date of Request:      

(Signature be that of Mayor, Manager or Clerk) 

 

*If additional pages of the application are used, please remember to include the additional numbers of 

participants in the computations for the total premium. 

 

This is NOT a bill. An invoice will be sent January 1, 2023.  

165



 

 

CIRSA Plan Information 

 

 

2023 VOLUNTEER ACCIDENT MEDICAL COVERAGE PLAN (Optional) 

 

Coverage: This optional coverage provides medical and accidental death and 

dismemberment (AD&D) coverage for non-statutory volunteers and volunteer 

unsworn rangers and/or patrol (i.e. Colorado Mounted Rangers) who are not 

covered by the Colorado Workers’ Compensation Act and who do not receive 

monetary remuneration. Coverage is offered to both Property/Casualty and 

Workers’ Compensation Pool members. 

 

 Uncompensated elected and appointed officials may also be eligible for this 

coverage if the member has met the filing requirements of the Division of 

Workers’ Compensation and is not providing Workers’ Compensation coverage 

for them. 

 

Limits: Accidental Death Benefit Amount: $ 10,000 

 Accidental Dismemberment Benefit, Maximum Amount: $ 10,000 

 Accidental Medical Expense Benefit (Primary): $ 50,000 

 Dental Maximum (Per Tooth Per Accident): $ 250 

 Aggregate Limit Per Occurrence: $ 250,000 

 Catastrophic Cash (lump sum), Maximum Benefit: $ 25,000 

 

Deductible: This plan has no deductible. 

 

Premium A deposit premium will be billed effective the date your entity begins coverage  

Billing: under the policy. The deposit premium will be adjusted at the year-end audit 

based on actual participation members. Mid-year billings will be done if there is 

an addition of 15 or more participants to the program. All other additions will be 

adjusted at the year-end audit. 

 

Record Your entity is required to maintain registration or roster forms listing covered  

Keeping: individuals throughout the year. These forms are to be used to determine your 

year-end audit actual participation numbers and to certify an individual is an 

individual covered by this policy should a claim occur. Please make sure each 

volunteer is listed only once on the registration or roster forms. Each individual 

volunteer or volunteer unsworn rangers and/or patrol must be listed on either a 

registration or roster form for coverage to apply. Sample registration or roster 

forms will be provided to assist you in this process. 

 

  

166



 

 

CIRSA Plan Information 

 Page 2 

 

Claims: Wellfleet Insurance Company administers the claims. Claim forms will be 

provided. Injured persons should be directed to the physician of their choice. 

Attach bills for medical expenses being claimed to the completed claim form and 

send directly to: 

 

  Wellfleet Insurance Company 

  1500 Main Street, 10th Floor 

  PO Box 15369 

  Springfield, MA 01115 

 

 Fax: (413) 733-4612 

  Attention: Claims Department 

 

 Email: customerservice@wellfleetinsurance.com 

 

If you have any questions regarding claims, please call Wellfleet at (800) 633-7867. 

 

This information is provided only as a general summary of the coverages that 

apply or are available to CIRSA members. All coverages are governed by the 

terms, conditions, exclusions, and limits stated in the applicable coverage 

documents. This summary should not be relied on as a substitute for review 

of those document.

167

mailto:customerservice@wellfleetinsurance.com


 

November 4, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Contract with Interim Town Administrator 

Summary:   

 

 

Possible Motion: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Knutson Trustee Markle Trustee Smith 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Valentine Trustee Weber Mayor Bachran (Tie) 

 

 

168



1 
 

Interim Town Administrator  

Independent Contractor Agreement 

 

This Interim Town Administrator Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered 

into this 9th day of November, 2022, by and between the Town of Paonia, Colorado (from now 

on “Town”) and Sustainable Futures LLC (from now on “IA”).  

WHEREAS, the Town is in need of an Interim Town Administrator during the transition to 

hiring a permanent Town Administrator to fill the open position; and, 

WHEREAS, IA has formerly served as the Town Administrator for statutory towns, knows the 

position, and has the skill, aptitude, and ability to perform the functions required by the role of 

Administrator; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to obtain IA’s services temporarily; and, 

WHEREAS, IA desires to assist the Town in this temporary period, and the Town understands 

that for financial reasons, IA requires the engagement to be for a period of no less than two (2) 

months.   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the joint and mutual promises contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties hereto state and agree as follows: 

1. Term:  Commencing at 8:00 A.M on November 9, 2022, and continuing through at least 

January 7, 2023, IA shall assume the duties of and serve in the role of Town 

Administrator for the Town of Paonia, Colorado. The Board of Trustees of the Town 

(“BOT”) and IA may agree in writing, approved and executed with the same formality as 

this Agreement, to extend this Agreement for a mutually agreed upon period.  

 

2. Duties & Responsibilities: IA shall assume all of the duties and responsibilities listed in 

the Paonia Municipal Code (“Town Code”), the Town Administrator job description, and 

any other duties or responsibilities assigned to her by the BOT that are common and 

expected duties and responsibilities placed on other Town Administrators of similar size 

towns in the State of Colorado; except that, IA shall have no authority to terminate any 

employees of the Town, and IA’s authority to bind the Town in any respect whatsoever, 

or to incur any debts or liabilities in the name of or on behalf of the Town shall be subject 

to the Town’s Purchasing Policies, or prior BOT approval, as applicable. In performing 

the services hereunder, IA shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable federal, 

state, and local laws, including the ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations of the 

Town.  

 

3. Representation: IA designates Leslie Anne Klusmire as its principal in charge, and the 

sole person who shall be providing the services under this Agreement.   

169



2 
 

 

 

4. Compensation: IA shall be compensated at the rate of $85 per hour, payable at such times 

and in such a manner as is consistent with the current payroll practices of the Town of 

Paonia.  Checks should be made payable to Sustainable Futures LLC. 

 

5. Travel: The Town shall reimburse the IA for hours spent traveling at $70 per hour and 

mileage from her office in Monte Vista to the Town at the IRS rate for any travel 

required in connection with IA duties. The Town shall reimburse the total costs of 

lodging in Paonia.  Lodging shall be provided if and when IA is working in Paonia for 

two or more consecutive days, Board meeting attendance requires her presence past 8 pm 

or for weather-related traffic concerns. 

 

6. Conferences and training: If conferences or other necessary training to address a current 

issue town is facing is provided by the State of Colorado or other entities serving 

municipal government (such as the Municipal League or the City Manager’s 

Association), the Town shall pay for travel, lodging, and registration for the IA, provided 

IA first obtains the BOT’s prior written approval to attend such conference or training for 

the good of the Town.  

 

7. Health, Disability, and Life Insurance Benefits: None  

 

8. Retirement Benefits: None 

 

9. Availability: IA may schedule her hours (average 24 per week) to have a Friday and 

Monday off, assuming there are no pressing or scheduled town matters.  IA has informed 

the BOT that she will not be available Wednesday - Friday of the Thanksgiving holiday 

and Thursday to Monday of the Christmas holiday. 

 

10. Other Benefits: Except as provided in this Agreement, IA shall not receive any benefits 

(e.g., auto allowance, telephone allowance, etc.) of any type from the Town. 

 

11. Bonding: Pursuant to Section 2-9-50 of the Town Code, the BOT must require any 

person serving as Town Administrator to furnish a bond to the Town in such sum as it 

may determine conditioned upon his/her faithful performance of the duties of the office 

of Town Administrator. The BOT has determined the Town’s insurance policies provide 

coverage sufficient to set the sum of the bond at zero (0) dollars. 

 

12. Contractor:  It is the expressed intent of the parties that IA is an independent contractor 

and not the agent, employee, or servant of the Town and that: 

A. IA will not be entitled to or receive employment benefits made available to regular 

full-time employees, including medical or retirement benefits, sick leave, disability 

170



3 
 

benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, paid vacation, or employee benefits of any 

kind. 

B. IA shall be solely responsible for payment of all government withholdings regarding 

compensation received under this contract. IA shall be solely responsible for meeting all 

applicable withholding and tax requirements, including the employer’s tax. IA is not 

entitled to worker’s compensation or unemployment compensation benefits and is 

obligated to pay federal and state income tax on any money earned pursuant to this 

agreement. The contractor shall provide a W-9 form before commencing work. 

C. Contractor will not combine her other business operations during any period she is 

working for and billing town in any way with the Town’s business operations. Each party 

shall maintain its operations separate and distinct. 

D. It is understood that the IA is not to be treated as an employee under the provisions 

contained in the Town’s Personnel Policy.  

E. IA will provide approximately 24 hours per week on average as the Town needs in any 

given week, which hours may be more or less adjusted up or down as needed. IA agrees 

to be onsite for the Regular Board meetings scheduled on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday 

evenings of the month. IA may perform other work remotely unless otherwise directed by 

the BOT.  

13. Termination:  If BOT terminates this Agreement for any reason not specifically stated in 

this Section, or for no reason at all, before the expiration of the term of this Agreement 

(January 7, 2023), then BOT shall immediately pay IA $2040 per full week remaining 

under the term. However, if IA is terminated due partially or wholly on a conviction for a 

state criminal or federal act, other than traffic offenses, a misdemeanor traffic offense, 

Class 2 or 3 misdemeanors, petty offense, the Town has no obligation to pay beyond the 

last day for which services were performed.  In addition, for work-related conduct which 

constitutes a material breach of this Agreement, or willful or wanton acts or resulting in 

gross negligence, the Town has no obligation to pay beyond the last day for which 

services were performed. IA may not terminate this Agreement for IA’s convenience.  

 

14. Indemnification: To the extent permitted by law, and to the manner and extent required 

by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., the Town 

shall defend, save harmless and indemnify IA from and against any claims against IA 

where the claim against the IA arises out of injuries sustained from an act or omission of 

the IA occurring during the performance of the IA’s services hereunder. To the extent 

permitted by law, IA shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless the Town from and 

against any claims arising out of the IA’s material breach of this Agreement, or willful 

and wanton conduct in the performance of the IA’s services hereunder.  

 

15. Documents and Confidentiality: All computer input and output, analyses, plans, 

documents photographic images, tests, maps, surveys, electronic files and written 

171



4 
 

material of any kind generated or obtained in the performance of this Agreement or 

developed for the Town in performance of IA’s services hereunder, are and shall remain 

the sole and exclusive property of the Town.  All such materials shall be promptly 

provided to the Town upon request therefor and at the time of termination of this 

Agreement, without charge or expense to the Town.  IA shall not use or disclose 

confidential information of the Town for purposes unrelated to performance of this 

Agreement without the Town’s written consent. “Confidential information of the Town” 

means information (i) clearly marked confidential, (ii) prohibited from disclosure under 

the Colorado Open Records Act, (iii) required by law to be kept confidential, or (iv) that 

could compromise the Town’s negotiating position or subject the Town to liability if 

disclosed. Confidential Information shall not include information which is in the public 

domain through other means. 

 

16. Entire Agreement: This Contractor Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 

the parties, integrates all the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, 

and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties concerning all 

or any part of the subject matter hereof. 

 

17. Waiver: Failure of either party at any time to require the performance of any provisions 

of this contractor Agreement shall not limit the parties’ right to enforce the provision, nor 

shall any waiver of any breach of any provision be a waiver of any succeeding breach of 

the provision itself or any other provision. 

 

18. Severability: If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Contractor 

Agreement is held to be unlawful, unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, the 

remainder of this Contractor Agreement or portion thereof shall be deemed severable and 

shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

19. Non-Appropriation: Nothing in this Agreement is intended or shall be deemed or 

construed as creating any multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or financial 

obligation on the part of the Town within the meaning of Colorado Constitution Article 

X, Section 20 or any other constitutional or statutory provision. All financial obligations 

of the Town under this Agreement beyond the 2022 fiscal year are subject to budgeting 

and appropriation by the Paonia Board of Trustees, in its sole discretion. Notwithstanding 

anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event of non-appropriation, this 

Agreement shall terminate effective December 31, 2022. 

 

20. Governmental Immunity: The parties understand and agree that the Town is relying on, 

and does not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this contract, the monetary 

limitations or any other rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado 

Governmental Immunity Act, § 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S., as from time to time amended, 

or otherwise available to the Town, its officers, or its employees. 

 

172



5 
 

Agreed this ___day of November, 2022. 

 

 

SUSTAINABLE FUTURES LLC 

 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Leslie Klusmire, Principal 

592 Madison Street  

Monte Vista, CO 81144 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOWN OF PAONIA 

 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

Mary Bachran, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Town Clerk  
 

 

173



 

November 4, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Mayor Bachran Trustee Knutson Trustee Valentine 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Smith Trustee Markle Trustee Weber 

 

 

 

174



 
Mayor’s Report  

November 8, 2022 
11-3-22 
CDPHE Cancer Coalition Symposium Presentation – Built Environment Tree Grant 

 Ten minute presentation on the grant given to Paonia to plant trees on Grand Ave. 
 
10-13-22 
Meeting with John Valentine and Dave Knutsen outside Town Hall 

 Dave Knutsen and I were debriefing after the meeting when John Valentine walked up. I 
believe we were talking about the agenda item regarding the censure of Thomas 
Markle. I do not remember specifics. The encounter was very brief and did not concern 
any Town business. 

 
 

 

175



176



177



 

November 3, 2022 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance: Weber & Smith 

Parks: Knutson & Stelter 

Streets: Valentine & Markle 

Water/Sewer/Trash/AWC: Weber & Markle 

Personnel: Smith & Valentine 

Public Safety: Knutson & Stelter 

 

Paonia Tree Board: Trustee Valentine 

 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Mayor Bachran Trustee Knutson Trustee Valentine 

Trustee Stelter Trustee Smith Trustee Markle Trustee Weber 

 

 

 

178



Ads Posted for Town Clerk and Town Clerk Salaries in Other CO Towns 

11/2/2022 – Personnel Committee  

1. High Country Shopper – Included in the paper editions on Wed. Oct. 26 (page 19), Nov. 2 (page 19) and Nov. 9. Online 

ad will run until Nov. 15  Cost of $89.40 (visa) https://www.highcountryshopper.com/classifieds/job/town-

clerk/ad_2c1e9b5c-92dc-5c43-9fd4-16ff3e42ab52.html 

2. Colorado Municipal League no cost      

https://members.cml.org/members/job_bank/View_Posting.aspx?ID=36643&SEQN=2 

3. Colorado Municipal Clerks Association no cost 

https://www.cmcaclerks.com/Home/Components/JobPosts/Job/66/5 
 

4. Montrose Daily Press Nov. 1 -Nov. 12 (Cost for Montrose DP and DCI $255.50 - invoice) 

Print ad  https://www.montrosepress.com/eedition/page-a11/page_25219cd0-9578-5cea-834c-

938eb3631202.html 

Online ad  https://www.montrosepress.com/classifieds/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-the-town-of-paonia-

is/ad_6e1f81ca-9026-5997-ad4e-f7ab38556422.html 

5. Delta County Independent print ad, Oct 26, Nov 2 and Nov 9  

 Print ad Page B03 | e-Edition | deltacountyindependent.com 

Online (same ad as posted through the Montrose Daily Press) 

https://www.deltacountyindependent.com/classifieds/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-the-town-of-paonia-

is/ad_4c08155d-e6de-55c6-95f6-5c2ca7a946aa.html 
 

6. Durango Herald- Print ad 10/26, 10/28, 10/30, 11/2, 11/4, 11/6, 11/9, 11/11 Cost 396.64 (visa) 

 
 

179

https://www.highcountryshopper.com/classifieds/job/town-clerk/ad_2c1e9b5c-92dc-5c43-9fd4-16ff3e42ab52.html
https://www.highcountryshopper.com/classifieds/job/town-clerk/ad_2c1e9b5c-92dc-5c43-9fd4-16ff3e42ab52.html
https://members.cml.org/members/job_bank/View_Posting.aspx?ID=36643&SEQN=2
https://www.cmcaclerks.com/Home/Components/JobPosts/Job/66/5
https://www.cmcaclerks.com/Home/Components/JobPosts/Job/66/5
https://www.montrosepress.com/eedition/page-a11/page_25219cd0-9578-5cea-834c-938eb3631202.html
https://www.montrosepress.com/eedition/page-a11/page_25219cd0-9578-5cea-834c-938eb3631202.html
https://www.montrosepress.com/classifieds/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-the-town-of-paonia-is/ad_6e1f81ca-9026-5997-ad4e-f7ab38556422.html
https://www.montrosepress.com/classifieds/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-the-town-of-paonia-is/ad_6e1f81ca-9026-5997-ad4e-f7ab38556422.html
https://www.deltacountyindependent.com/eedition/page-b03/page_ca9a5b9b-c5f8-530a-a789-554e6e62eed5.html
https://www.deltacountyindependent.com/classifieds/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-the-town-of-paonia-is/ad_4c08155d-e6de-55c6-95f6-5c2ca7a946aa.html
https://www.deltacountyindependent.com/classifieds/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-the-town-of-paonia-is/ad_4c08155d-e6de-55c6-95f6-5c2ca7a946aa.html


7. Grand Junction Daily Sentinel – Display ad published on October 26 and Sunday Oct. 30. Online ad through Nov. 26  

cost $672 

https://westerncolorado.jobs/places/view/255/town_of_paonia.html 

 

8. Pueblo Chieftain - Print ad Sun. 10/30 and Sun. 11/6 cost $276.20 (visa)   
 

Online ad running until 11/30 https://jobs.chieftain.com/company/town-of-paonia-294466/job/town-of-paonia-town-

clerk-in-paonia-co-9qvflxsv7o8xm1tinippbgcg5nvohz/?sid=1057842098%2C1057842096 

 

Salary Comparisons 
  

Paonia advertised salary range $56,160 ($27.00) - $72,800 ($35.00) 

 

Frisco Deputy Clerk -  $24.85 - $34.78 (currently advertised) 

 

Frisco Town Clerk/Assistant to Manager - 72,559.65 - $108,839.47 (currently advertised) 

 

Lyons Deputy Town Clerk - $48,565 – 61,381 (currently advertised) 

 

CML salary survey for Clerks: 

 

Town Population Range  Actual 

Hotchkiss* 1008 $57,132 - $77,126 $66,874 

Cedaredge 2300 $52,108 - $70,131 $51,106 

Delta 8700 $60,923 - $80,205 $51,672 

Blue River 917 $48,000 - $72,000 $72,000 

Ignacio 890 $60,195 – 62,610$ $61,403 

Gilcrest** 1070 00.00 – 00.00 $92,643 

Parachute** 1085 $91,087 - $99,660 $99,660 

Bennet 2623 $51,922 - $$71,983 $55,085 

Granby 2002 $64,046 - $91,071 $102,503 

Ridgeway 1000 $35,300 - $$49,420 $42,360 

Buena Vista 2196 $55,078 - $76,003 $65,224 

Springfield 1451 $41,600 - $57,200 $44,990 

Georgetown 1096 00.00 – 00.00 $55,917 

Leadville* 2800 $35,875 - $63,000 $63,000 

Hayden 1932 $59,585 - $76,042 $72,246 

    

 

*do not have a Town Manager 

 

**salary listed for the Town Manager and Clerk are identical 

180

https://westerncolorado.jobs/places/view/255/town_of_paonia.html
https://jobs.chieftain.com/company/town-of-paonia-294466/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-in-paonia-co-
https://jobs.chieftain.com/company/town-of-paonia-294466/job/town-of-paonia-town-clerk-in-paonia-co-

	Top
	Roll Call
	ASF 1 - Roll Call

	Police Chief Promotion
	ASF 3 - Announcements

	Consent Agenda
	5.DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY 2022
	5a.Disbursements 11082022
	5b.Chase Statement
	5c.Phillip66 Statement
	5d.Payroll
	5e.Payroll Taxes

	Staff Reports
	ASF 5 - Staff Reports
	6.Finance Report 11082022
	Police Blotter 1108
	110822 Police Progress Report
	Public Works Report  November 08
	Water_Waste Water Treatment

	2023 Proposed Budget
	7.2023 Proposed Budget

	Revision to Town Attorney Contract
	ASF - Lawyer Contract Approval
	2022-11-02 Paonia Contract (kk redline)LawFirm
	2022-10-20 Paonia Contract[5932]

	Holiday Art Fair Extended Street Closure
	NFVCC RTBOA

	Community Collective
	Dowe_ Hooper Letter

	EXECUTIVE SESSION
	ASF 11- Exec Sess

	Paonia in Motion
	CIRSA Optional Coverages
	2023 Certificates of Insurance Renewal - Paonia
	2023 Excess Crime Quote Letter - Paonia
	2023 No-Fault Water Line Rupture and or Sewer Back-Up Quote Letter-Paonia
	2023 VAMP Renewal Application and Plan Information - Paonia

	Contract with Interim Town Administrator
	ASF - Interim Administrator Contract
	IA BOT Contractor Agreement Paonia (packet)

	Mayor's Report
	ASF - Mayor’s Report
	Mayor report 11-8-22[5884]
	Trustee Valentine & Knutsons Notes

	Committee Reports
	ASF 9 - Committee Reports
	Personell Report

	Bottom

